








 

City Engineer 

Report 

July 2, 2013 

Design Projects: 

 

Owassa Road 

  Environmental Document is in progress. 

 

Construction Projects: 

 

Sam Houston Boulevard Widening 

There is two-way traffic throughout the project length. Contractor continues to work on north side lanes 

and forming storm manholes.  

 

Pharr Aquatic Center 

Project is completed. Contractor is finishing up minor details of the punch list.  

 

West Hall Acres Road  

Project is completed. A final walk thru was done and the contractor is addressing minor items identified.  

 

Pharr Produce District Subdivision Phase I 

Contractor continues to work on the installation of the 12” sewer line along S. Sugar Rd. Work on the 

12” water line along Military Hwy has begun.   

 

Rancho Blanco Traffic Signal 

  Bids were received and recommendation to award is on the agenda. 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Sam Houston Boulevard Widening 

Pharr Aquatic Center – Pool 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

West Hall Acres Road 

 

Pharr Produce District Subdivision Phase I 

 



 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR CALLED MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 18, 2013 AT 5:00 P.M. 
118 SOUTH CAGE 2ND FLOOR 

 
 The Board of Commissioners of the City of Pharr, Texas, met in a Regular Called 
Meeting on Tuesday, June 18, 2013 and following is the record of attendance.  
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Mayor Leopoldo Palacios Jr. 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Adan Farias  
 Comm. Arturo Cortez 
 Comm. Roberto Carrillo 
 Comm. Eduardo Cantu (arrived at 5:12 pm) 
 Comm. Aquiles Garza   
  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  Comm. Oscar Elizondo, Jr. 
        
STAFF PRESENT:                                     Fred Sandoval, City Manager 
 David Garza, Asst. City Mgr./Utilities Dir. 
   Hilda Pedraza, City Clerk 
 Javier Rodriguez, C.D. Director 
 Juan Guerra, Chief Financial Officer 
 Ruben Villescas, Police Chief  
 Carlos Mandujano, Asst. Fire Chief 
 Frank Marin, Parks & Recreation Dir. 
 Roy Garcia, Public Works Director 
 Roy Torres, Head Building Inspector 
 Adolfo Garcia, Library Director 
 Raul Garza, Admin. Services Director 
 Gary Rodriguez, External Affairs Mgr. 
 Roel Garza, Athletics Director 
 
CITY ATTORNEY                                         Michael Pruneda, City Attorney 
CITY ENGINEER  Bill Ueckert, City Engineer  
   
ITEM 1  CALL TO ORDER: 
 
 Mayor Palacios called the meeting to order at 5:09 p.m. Roll Call established a 
quorum. 
 

A) ROLL CALL AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE EXCUSING OF ANY 
ABSENT MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BODY 

   
 Comm. Carrillo moved to excuse Comm. Elizondo for being absent.  Comm. 
Garza seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously. 
 
  



MINUTES:  REGULAR CALLED MEETING 
JUNE 18, 2013 

 2 

B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INVOCATION. 
 
 Ed Arjona led in the pledge of allegiance and the invocation. 
 
 Comm. Cantu arrived at this time being 5:12 p.m. 
 
ITEM 2 CITY MANAGER’S REPORTS: 

 
A) City Engineer’s Report - Bill Ueckert 
B) Submission of monthly report – Pharr Municipal Court 
C) Submission of May 2013 Tax Collection Report 
D) Submission of June 2013 Sales Tax Report 
E) City events of interest 
F) Legislative/Project Update 

 
 Mayor Palacios introduced the item. 
 

Fred Sandoval, City Manager, stated the City Engineer was in the audience and 
any questions on projects could be entertained at this time. 

 
Comm. Cantu asked for an update on Sam Houston project. Roy Garcia stated 

the contractor had informed him he was finalizing the last two uncovered manholes and 
would then move forward with the roadway improvements within the next two weeks.  
He stated the contract with TxDOT was still in effect until January and was on schedule 
but would try to expedite the project. Mr. Garcia added he would request a report from 
the contractor on the time schedule and present it to them. 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, reported the Taste of the Valley event was 

scheduled for Thursday, June 20, 2013 from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. at the Pharr Events 
Center.  He stated approximately 569 tickets had been sold and 24 restaurants had 
signed up to participate and invited everyone to attend.  

 
 Fred Sandoval, City Manager, further reported House Bill 474 had been signed 

into law by the Governor and briefly stated Pharr would be the first in Hidalgo County to 
carry overweight trucks through the Pharr International Bridge. What this means is that 
we will be able to handle more products from Mexico and help commercial carriers 
comply with regulations. He further stated Fred Brouwen, Chief Ruben Villescas and 
himself had met with DPS commander to discuss the logistics, fees collection, needs of 
the produce and maquila industries, and ways to improve the approaches to our bridge. 
 
ITEM 3 CONSENT AGENDA: (All items listed under consent Agenda are 

considered to be routine and non-controversial by the Governing Body 
and will be enacted by one motion.  Any Commissioner may remove 
items from the consent agenda by making such request prior to a 
motion and vote on the Consent Agenda) 

 
A) APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JUNE 4, 2013 – REGULAR CALLED 

MEETING  



MINUTES:  REGULAR CALLED MEETING 
JUNE 18, 2013 

 3 

B) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON CHANGE ORDER #3 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $340,749 FOR THE CITY OF PHARR AQUATIC 
CENTER PROJECT 
   

C) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, AUTHORIZING CITY 
MANAGER TO REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR TEXAS 
COMMUNITY SAFE ROOM PROGRAM 

 

D) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, AUTHORIZING CITY 
MANAGER TO RE-ADVERTISE THE NORTHSIDE PARK (DR. LONG 
SCHOOL) SPECIAL NEEDS FACILITY 

 

E) PUBLIC HEARING: SOLICITATION OF ANY COMMENTS AND 
CONCERNS FROM THE GENERAL PUBLIC ON THE EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM FY 
2013 AWARD FOR $20,487.00 FOR THE PURCHASE OF FIREARM 
SIMULATOR  

 

F) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING POLICE CHIEF TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION AND 
ACCEPT EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE 
GRANT PROGRAM FY 2013 AWARD FOR $20,487.00 FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF FIREARM SIMULATOR 
 

G) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON PLANNING & ZONING 
CASES: 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Rommel Organista, d/b/a Kurai Chinese & Sushi Restaurant, requested renewal of the 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premise 
consumption in a General Business District (C). The property is legally described as Lot 
1, Ridge Court Phase II Subdivision, Pharr, Hidalgo County, Texas. The property's 
physical address is 1201 S. Jackson, Ste 1. 

 
PLATS: 

 
2. Rodriguez Engineering, representing Jesus Hector Trevino and Winnina Trevino 

requested final plat approval of the proposed Re-plat of Sam Houston Dental & Surgery 
Center Subdivision. The property is legally described as a 1.668 acre tract of land being 
all of Lot 1, Sam Houston Dental & Surgery Center Subdivision and part of tract 1 and 2, 
Pharr, Hidalgo County, Texas. The property’s physical address is 413 W. Sam Houston 
Blvd. 

 

 Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced items 3A through 3G (2) and stated no 
one had signed up to speak during the public hearing portion of the meeting.  
 

Comm. Carrillo moved to approve items 3A through 3G (2) under the consent 
agenda.  Comm. Cantu seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried 
unanimously.  Resolution No. R-2013-32 is filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 



MINUTES:  REGULAR CALLED MEETING 
JUNE 18, 2013 

 4 

REGULAR AGENDA – OPEN SESSION: 
 
ITEM 4  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS: 
 

A) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON ORDINANCE 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT PHARR AQUATIC CENTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and recommended approval. 
 
Comm. Garza moved to approve third and final reading of the Ordinance.  

Comm. Carrillo seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously.  
Ordinance No. O-2013-25 is filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 

 
Mayor Palacios stated this was one of the best aquatic parks south of San 

Antonio and it had been a great effort and initiative by this Commission.  He further 
stated everyone was anticipating the opening of the aquatic park. 

 
Frank Marin, Parks and Recreation Director, reported the ribbon cutting 

ceremony was scheduled for Thursday, June 27, 2013 at 9:00 a.m. with a soft opening 
scheduled on Saturday, June 29, 2013.  He stated the “Learn to Swim Classes” would 
begin on Monday, July 1, 2013 and the grand opening would be on Thursday, July 4, 
2013. 

 
B) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON ORDINANCE 

APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE TIERRA DEL SOL GOLF CLUB 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and recommended approval. 
 
Comm. Carrillo moved to approve third and final reading of the Ordinance. 

Comm. Cortez seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously.  
Ordinance No. O-2013-26 is filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 

 
C) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON ORDINANCE ADOPTING 

CITY OF PHARR CASH HANDLING MANUAL 
 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and recommended approval. 
 
Comm. Carrillo moved to approve third and final reading of the Ordinance. 

Comm. Cantu seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously.  
Ordinance No. O-2013-27 is filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 

 
D) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF PHARR PARTICIPATION IN THE 
STEERING COMMITTEE OF CITIES SERVED BY AEP FOR THE 
ENERGY EFFICIENCY COST RECOVERY FACTOR (EECRF) 
 



MINUTES:  REGULAR CALLED MEETING 
JUNE 18, 2013 

 5 

Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and recommended approval. 
 
Comm. Cantu moved to approve.  Comm. Carrillo seconded the motion and 

when put to a vote, it carried unanimously. Resolution No. R-2013-33 is filed with the 
City Clerk’s Office. 

 
E) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON RESOLUTION 

APPOINTING/RE-APPOINTING FOUR (4) MEMBERS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Javier Rodriguez, Community Development Director, briefly stated four members 

needed to be appointed/re-appointed. He briefly stated Rene Cantu (CT 215) had 
express his wish to be re-appointed and three members (CT 213) (CT 217) and (CT 
216) needed to be replaced due to lack of attendance.  

 
Discussion ensued concerning the zone limits for the new appointments. Mr. 

Rodriguez briefly went over the boundaries and stated he would present a city map with 
census tract boundaries at the next meeting. At this time, he recommended re-
appointment of Rene Cantu and to table the three new appointments for the next 
meeting.  

 
Comm. Cortez moved to re-appoint Rene Cantu as member to the Community 

Development Council and table the appointment of three (3) new members. Comm. 
Cantu seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously.  Resolution 
No. R-2013-34 is filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 

  
F) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, RESOLUTION 

APPOINTING/RE-APPOINTING ONE (1) ALTERNATE MEMBER TO 
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Comm. Carrillo moved to re-appoint Heriberto Campos. Comm. Cortez 

seconded the motion and when put to a vote, the motion carried unanimously.  
Resolution No. R-2013-35 is filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 

 
G) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON RESOLUTION 

APPOINTING/RE-APPOINTING THREE (3) MEMBERS TO THE BOARD 
OF ADJUSTMENT 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Comm. Cantu moved to re-appoint Hector Guerra, Sr., Rosie Ibanez and Robert 

Zuniga to the Board of Adjustment. Comm. Farias seconded the motion and when put to 
a vote, it carried unanimously.  Resolution No. R-2013-36 is filed with the City Clerk’s 
Office. 



MINUTES:  REGULAR CALLED MEETING 
JUNE 18, 2013 

 6 

H) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING POLICE CHIEF TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE 
OPERATION STONEGARDEN GRANT THROUGH THE STATE OF 
TEXAS GOVERNORS DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 
Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and recommended approval. 
 
Comm. Carrillo moved to approve.  Comm. Cortez seconded the motion and 

when put to a vote, it carried unanimously.  Resolution No. R-2013-37 is filed with the 
City Clerk’s Office. 
 
ITEM 5    CONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS: 
 

A) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, ON CONTRACTUAL 
AGREEMENT WITH ROBERTO LEAL-TOVIAS FOR LOBBYING 
SERVICES FOR THE PHARR-REYNOSA INTERNATIONAL BRIDGE 

 
 Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and stated Roberto Leal was 
in the audience to answer any questions and recommended his job description be 
changed from lobbying services to representative. He further stated the contract had 
been presented and approved by the Bridge Board and recommended approval. 
 
 Comm. Cortez moved to approve a three (3) year contract.  Comm. Carrillo 
seconded the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously. 
 

B) CONSIDERATION AND ACTION, IF ANY, AMENDING CONTRACT 
WITH JAVIER HINOJOSA ENGINEERING FOR THE PHARR 
PRODUCE DISTRICT SUBDIVISION PHASE I TO INCLUDE SITE 
INSPECTION SERVICES 
 

Fred Sandoval, City Manager, introduced the item and stated this was an 
addition to the existing contract negotiated with Javier Hinojosa to provide additional 
oversight on the Produce District subdivision and have a representative on-site.  He 
further stated this contract was at the City level and funded by the Economic 
Development Corporation. 

 
Bill Ueckert, City Engineer, stated the contract was for 250 days 7 days a week 

and the amendment would allow the on-site inspections to be done on behalf of the City 
after hours and on weekends.  

 
Comm. Farias moved to approve as recommended.  Comm. Garza seconded 

the motion and when put to a vote, it carried unanimously. 
 
ITEM 6 CLOSED SESSION:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 551 OF THE 

TEXAS GOV'T.  CODE, THE PHARR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT IT WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 
TO DISCUSS THE ITEMS LISTED ON THE PUBLIC PORTION OF THE 
MEETING AGENDA, INCLUDING ITEMS 4 – 5 



MINUTES:  REGULAR CALLED MEETING 
JUNE 18, 2013 

 7 

 None. 
  
ITEM 7 RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND CONSIDER ACTION, IF 

NECESSARY ON ANY ITEM(S) DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 None. 
 
 At this time, Mayor Palacios announced the grand opening of Luby’s Cafeteria’s 
brand new location would take place on Wednesday, June 26, 2013 from 11:00 a.m. to 
1:00 p.m.  
   
ITEM 8 ADJOURNMENT:   
 
 There being no other business to come before the board, Comm. Farias moved 
to adjourn.  Comm. Cortez seconded the motion and when put to a vote, the motion 
carried unanimously.   Meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
 

CITY OF PHARR 
 
 

______________________           ____ 
LEOPOLDO “POLO” PALACIOS, JR. 
MAYOR 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
CITY OF PHARR 
 
 ON THIS THE 18TH DAY OF JUNE, 2013 the Board of Commissioners of the 
City of Pharr, Texas convened in a REGULAR CALLED MEETING at the 
Commissioner’s Room located at 118 S. Cage, 2nd Floor, Pharr, Texas.  The meeting 
being open to the public and notice of said meeting, giving the date, place, subject, 
hereof, having been posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Texas Government Code 
(Open Meetings Act) and there being present a quorum, I, HILDA PEDRAZA, CITY 
CLERK, of the City of Pharr, Texas, certify that this is a true and correct copy of the 
minutes. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
HILDA PEDRAZA, CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED:   





   

i n t e r o f f i c e  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

                                        
To:  Mayor and City Commission  

   

From:   Hilda Pedraza, TRMC City Clerk 

 

Subject:     Agenda Item – authorizing City Manager to advertise for request for 

qualifications for Construction Management at Risk for the North Park project. 
 

 

Date:   July 2, 2013 

 

 

 

No backup information is needed for this item. 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 



























































































 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
To:  Fred Sandoval – City Manager 
 
From:  William F. Ueckert Jr., P.E. - City Engineer 

  
Date:  June 25, 2013 
 
Re: Agenda Item - Consideration and action, if any, awarding bid for the Traffic Signals 

- US 281 (Cage Blvd) & Rancho Blanco Road to D&E Energy Corporation in the 

amount of $104,871.00. 
 
 
 
 
 
Fred: 
 
A total of three (3) bids were received for the above referenced project. The low base bid was in the 
amount of $104,871.00 from D&E Energy Corporation of McAllen. Attached is the bid tabulation for 
this project. Attached is R. Gutierrez Engineering letter of recommendation to award. 
 
I recommend to award the construction contract to D&E Energy Corporation in the amount of 
$104,871.00. 
 
 
 



















 

 

Memorandum 

 
 

To:  Fred Sandoval – City Manager 

 

From:  William F. Ueckert Jr., P.E. - City Engineer 

  
Date:  June 25, 2013 

 

Re: Agenda Item - Consideration and action, if any, request for the city manager to 

negotiate a contract with Structural Engineering Associates, Inc. for structural 

review and inspection of the Pharr-Reynosa International Bridge. 

 

 

 

 

 

Fred: 

 

TxDOT performed a bridge structure inspection in 2009 and presented some repair recommendations. 

I’m recommending that a more detail bridge structure inspection be performed by Structural Engineering 

Associates, Inc. (SEA) of San Antonio. SEA were the design firm for the bridge when it was built in 

1994. Therefore, they are very familiar with the bridge structure. Also, they will be providing a detail 

report on the impacts of the overweight trucks coming over the bridge.  

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

[CITY OF PHARR LETTERHEAD] 

 

 

 

 

June 28, 2013 

 

 

 

Mr. Michael Kuhn 

General Counsel 

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 

711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300 

Houston, Texas  77002-2770 

 

Re: Notice of Disengagement 

Dear Colleagues: 

On behalf of the City of Pharr, and in my capacity to hire legal counsel on behalf of the City, this 

letter directs Bracewell & Giuliani LLP to discontinue legal representation as of June 23, 2013, 

for all matters listed on Attachment A and to transfer the related files to the individual(s) and/or 

firm(s) listed on Attachment A. 

I understand that Bracewell & Giuliani LLP has not retained a copy of these files, and legal 

representation by the firm has terminated. 

I also understand that the transfer of this information may incur the following expenses: 

a. Active Files 

• courier fees of vendor 

• copy expense (if required) 

 

b. Electronic Files 

• hourly rate of Information Systems (IS) personnel performing any retrieval 

and transfer 

• any costs for IS supplies required for the transfer 

 

c. Closed Files 

• retrieval and transfer costs of vendor 

• retrieval and destruction costs of vendor 

 

Any outstanding bills from your firm will be paid by us in a timely manner.  If a final bill is 

required for time and expenses not yet processed, including the time and expenses referenced 



 

General Counsel 

June 28, 2013 

Page 2 

 

 

above for the transfer of the materials, we confirm that those fees and expenses will be paid upon 

receipt in a timely manner.   

 

Very truly yours, 

 

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS 

Fred Sandoval  

City Manager 

 

cc: Mr. Ruben R. Barrera 

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 


	     AGENDA  07-02-13
	P.  2
	P.  3
	P.  4

	2.  CITY MGR'S REPORTS:
	A)  City Engineer's Report

	3.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	A)  Minutes  06-18-13
	B) Change Order #9  - WTP Expansion Project
	C) RFQ - Const Mgmt at Risk for North Park Proj.
	 D)  P & Z  CASES:
	1.  CUP / ABC - George's Dance Hall
	2.  CUP - Life-Of-The Use    T-Mobile West Tower
	3.  CUP - Exercise Room  - Eduardo Gomez
	4. CUP/ABC - El Rodeo Bar
	5.  COZ from A-O to C  - Belia Garcia
	6. Plat - Sugar Road S/D 

	4.  ORD / RESOLUTIONS:
	Community Develoment Member Appointments

	5.   ADMINISTRATIVE:
	A) Bid Award - US 281 & Rancho Blanco Signals

	6.  CONTRACTS/AGRMTS:
	A)  Hollis Rutledge
	B)  Color Me Loco  -  5K Run/Walk
	C) Strucural Eng. Assoc. - review & insp. Pharr Bridge
	D) Disengagement Letter - Bracewell & Giuliani, LLP




